State of California - The Resources Agency Primary #

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial
L NRHP Status Code
Other Listings
Review Code Reviewer Date
Page 1 of 5 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder): Thrash Ponti ac Mtors

P1. Other identifier: Surf Ri der Cafe
*P2. Location: L1 Not for Publication [ Unrestricted

*a. County Santa Cruz County and (P2b and P2c or P2d. Attach a location map as necessary.)
*b. USGS 7.5' Quad Santa Cruz Date Revi sed 1994 T .11 S ;R.2 W ; Munt D ablo B.M.
c. Address: 429 Front St. City Santa Cruz Zip 95060
d. UTM:(give more than one for large and/or linear resources) Zone 10S ; 586842 mE/ 4092156 mN

e.Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource, elevation, etc., as appropriate)
sout hwest corner of Front and Cathcart Streets. APN# 05-152-01

*P3a. Description: (Describe resource and its major elements, include design, material, condition, alterations, size, setting, and boundaries)
A post-World War || auto deal ership, this Art Mderne style building was initially constructed
in 1948 as a public garage for $35,000, and in 1949 an addition was built onto the building
for show oons for $10,000. It was designed by C. J. Ryland, a promnent architect from San
Jose. As the autonobile becane increasingly prevalent in urban centers during the Interwar
period of the twentieth century, conmmercial sales and services clusters began to appear, and
in Santa Cruz, this occurred primarily along Front Street. Garages, autonotive supply stores,
and auto sal es and show oom uses were prevalent on this street beginning in the 1920s and
| asted into the early 1980s. This one-story stucco conmercial building is a formof md-
twentieth century design known as Art Mdderne. The building is a clear representation of this
style, known for its use of “Mddern” materials (including concrete, steel, plate glass and,
often, contrasting stone or brickwork) in unenbellished, primarily horizontal conpositions,
often formed with two or three discrete. aeonetric volunes.(continued on paae 4. DPR523L)

*P3b. Resource Attributes: (List attributes and codes) HP6. 1-3 story commercial building
*P4. Resources Present: X Building [ Structure [JObject [JSite [District [ Element of District [ Other (Isolates, etc.)

P5b.Description of Photo:
(View, date, accession #)
Vi ew facing west, 2009.

*P6. Date Constructed/Age and Source:

X Historic []Prehistoric [] Both

1948-1949, building pernmt, 60
years ol d.

*P7. Owner and Address:

*P8. Recorded By: (Name,
affiliation, and address)

F. Maggi/L. Dill/J. Kusz

Archives & Architecture, LLC
PO Box 1332
San Jose, CA 95109

*P9. Date Recorded: 5/ 6/ 09
*P10. Survey Type: (Describe)

o . I nt ensive
*P11. Report Citation: (Cite survey report and other sources, or enter "none".)
Santa Cruz Historic Building Survey - Vol. |Ill, Department of Planning and Conmmunity
Devel opnent, City of Santa Cruz, 2012.

*Attachments:

[ None X Continuation Sheet [ District Record [ Rock Art Record [ other (List):
X Location Map [ Building, Structure, and Object Record [ Linear Feature Record [] Artifact Record

[ Sketch Map [ Archaeological Record [ Milling Station Record  [] Photograph Record

DPR 523A (1/95) * Required Information



State of California - The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION ARl

BUILDING, STRUCTURE, AND OBJECT RECORD

Page 2 of 5 *NRHP/CRHR Status Code  3CS
Resource Name (Assigned by recorder) Thrash Pontiac Mtors

B1. Historic Name: Thrash Pontiac Mdtors, Mrina-Pontiac Cadillac

B2. Common Name: 429 Front St.

B3. Original Use: Commerci al retail B4. Present Use: M xed-use conmer ci al
*B5. Architectural Style: ~ Art NMbder ne

*B6. Construction History: (Construction date, alterations, and date of alterations)
Original construction (SC BP #10060, August 20, 1948). Show oom construction (SC BP #10643, February 21,
1949). Renopdel and alterations to building, roof, and frontage (SC BP #A15927, April 14, 1969). Interior
remodel for restaurant use (SC BP#B4209, Cctober 3, 1986). Renodel and repairs, 1990s.

*B7. Moved? INo [JYes [JUnknown Date: n/a Original Location: n/ a
*B8. Related Features:

None.

B9a. Architect: C. J. Ryl and b. Builder: Orlo C. Hackbarth
*B10. Significance: Theme Commerci al Devel opnent Area: Downt own

Period of Significance: 1948 - 1964 Property Type: Commer ci al Applicable Criteria: (3)

(Discuss importance in terms of historical or architectural context as defined by theme, period and geographic scope. Also address integrity.)

This Art Moderne building was initially designed by San Jose architect, C. J. Ryland, and
constructed in 1948-1949 by contractor Olo C. Hackbarth as an auto deal ership for Thash
Pontiac Motors. As the autonpbile becane increasingly during the Interwar period, comercial
sal es and services clusters began to appear wi th urban areas throughout the United States. In
Santa Cruz, Front Street (originally named Main Street) was initially devel oped as the prinmary
downt own thoroughfare. In 1866, Thomas Wi ght and Sol onon Foreman conpleted a survey (which
became the two-part "Oficial Map of Santa Cruz" and "Oficial Map B of Santa Cruz") and Front
Street then becane a secondary street to the new y-named Pacific Avenue. Front Street then
subsequently evolved as Santa Cruz's Chinatown; this period ended with a fire in 1894 that
destroyed many of the early structures. Devel opnent of Front Street renmined sporadic until
after 1918 (with the exception of construction of the County jail and Hall of Records in the

| ate nineteenth century)when structures relating to the burgeoning auto industry began
appearing along here. (continued on page 5, DPR523L)

B11. Additional Resource Attributes: (list attributes and codes) None

*B12. References: (Sketch Map with north arrow required.)

City of Santa Cruz building permts.

City of Santa Cruz Standard Map, 1929.

Lehmann, Susan. Hi storic Context Statenent for City of Santa
Cruz. 2000.

Polk. R L., Santa Cruz City Directory. 1940-1989.

Sanborn Fire | nsurance Maps, 1905-1950.

B13. Remarks: None

*B14. Evaluator: Leslie DIl
*Date of Evaluation: May 6, 2009

(This space reserved for official comments.)
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State of California - The Resources Agency
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LOCATION MAP

Page 3 of 5 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) Thrash Pontiac Mtors
* Map Name: Santa Cruz, Calif.

*Scale: n. t.s. * Date of Map: 1954 (revised 1994)

DPR 523J (1/95)

*Required Information



State of California - The Resources Agency Primary #

HRI #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION Trinomial
CONTINUATION SHEET
Page 4 of 5 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) Thrash Pontiac Mtors
*Recorded By F. Maggi/L. Dill/J. Kusz *Date 5/ 6/2009 X continuation [] Update

(Continued from page 1, DPR523a, P3a Descri ption)

The Art Mderne building features a | arge curved al um num storefront that was added early in
1949 to display the latest cars; its Arizona Fieldstone planters and vertical nonunent sign are
si gnature design elements for the period. Both sections of the building were constructed by

| ocal contractor, Olo C Hackbarth.

The buil ding has three wings; two can be considered original, as they were built within a year
of each other and unified in their design, and the third wing is a later addition. The historic
garage and showroomwi ngs are unified by a full-wi dth, wapping Md-Century Mdern style awning
and connected at a vertical nonument sign. The garage volume is primarily utilitarian in
design. It has a large, rectangular footprint that follows the sidewal k frontage and runs the
full depth of the parcel at the southern edge of the corner property. This ol dest wing of the
bui I di ng has a | ow sl ope bow roof behind plain parapet walls.

The southern half of the Front Street sidewal k el evation has been altered with new wall s,

openi ngs, and doorways beneath the historic awning; it is likely this area was glazed in the
past, as there is a building pernmit fromthe md 1960s, which indicates that curtain walls were
removed and this |ocation seens altered. The nost significant portion of the building

i ncorporates the northeast corner of the main wing and extends into a distinctive glazed

show oom wi ng. The wing projects toward the parking lot and is exposed and gl azed on three

si des. Full-height al um num di spl ay wi ndows angl e around the two curved corners; sinlar

di spl ay wi ndows extend into the main garage volune. Contrasting with the curtain walls is a | ow
sandstone planter; this provides a heavy textural element that also is laid in thin rows,
accentuating the horizontal lines of the nasonry. A later wing follows the west property line,
behi nd the corner parking lot. The long, one-story wing has a flat roof.

The structure and exterior walls are reinforced concrete. The exposed south side wall displays
its concrete block materials, and the main front and north-side facades are faced with stucco.
A vertical wall projects forward slightly fromthe nmain wall face, and project above the
rooflines of the two nain wings; this wall acts as a Mdderne backdrop for applied signs. The
di spl ay wi ndows consist of |arge sheets of plate glass connected by narrow al um num munti ns.
The base of the wi ndows features Arizona sandstone planters that pass in front of the sign

wal | . The south-side wall is exposed at the parking area for the neighboring G eyhound station;
the “bus” sign is imedi ately adjacent to the subject building. The concrete-bl ock one-story
wi ng has gl ass-bl ock and recent storefronts that include glass block, high transoms, new

si gnage, and recent entry doors.

(Conti nued from page 2, DPR523b, B10 Signficance)

Thrash Mdtors occupied this nodern building after taking over the |ocal Pontiac dealership in
1934. A significant increase in sales volune post-Wrld War Il |ed Sylvan Thrash to commi ssion
Col unmbus J. Ryland to design this new Pontiac show oom and garage in 1948. Thrash Pontiac was

i n business until the early 1960s, when ownership changes to Marina Pontiac-Cadillac. The 1960s
saw t he begi nning of a change in |and use along Front Street as the City was undergoing a rapid
out ward expansi on period. The building remai ned vacant for a nunber of years during this tineg,
but was converted to retail commercial uses by the 1980s. In 1986, CGeorge Ow and Larry Chew
opened the Pontiac Gill in this building with a retro-style theme related to the early days of
t he deal ership. Mdre recently it was Café La Vie, and now is occupied by a surf-thened
restaurant called the Surf Ri der Cafe.

(Conti nued on next page)

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required Information
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Page 5 of 5 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder) Thrash Pontiac Mtors
*Recorded By F. Maggi/L. Dill/J. Kusz *Date 5/ 6/2009 X continuation [] Update

(Conti nued from | ast page)

The Art Mdderne style of this building is a distinctive representati on of the work of architect
C. J. Ryland. Colunbus J. Ryland was born in San Jose in 1892. He studied at the Western Nornal
California School of Arts and Crafts, and later studied in France after service in Wrld War |.
He returned to the United States and established hinself in Fresno, California working as a
partner in the firmSwartz & Ryland. Swartz and Ryl and worked nostly in small San Joaquin
Valley towns as well as in Cakland, Mnterey, and Salinas. |In 1931, Ryland went into business
with Santa Cruz architects, Lee Dill Esty and D M MPhetres. He conpl eted such buil dings as
Monterey City Hall, Carnmel Sunset Center, the Santa Cruz City Hall, Mrris Abrans Store, and of
course, Thrash Pontiac Mdtors. C. J. Ryland died in 1980 in Wl nut Creek.

S| GNI FI CANCE

The property was found eligible for the California Register of Historical Resources under
Criterion (3). The building is not individually significant to the devel opment of the downtown
area of Santa Cruz, and although it was one of a number of auto-oriented uses al ong Front
Street, the inportant pattern of devel opnment of this portion of the downtown has |ost much of
its historic setting, and thus woul d not appear to be eligible under Criterion (1). The

per sonages associated with the original auto body shop on this property are not known to be
hi storically significant, therefore the property would not appear to be eligible under
Criterion (2). The architect of the building, C. J. Ryland, is known to have made |asting
contributions to the building fabric of the South San Franci sco and Monterey Bay Areas. The
building is a distinctive representative of its tinme, as an architect designed-Art Mderne
conmmer ci al buil ding, and appears eligible under Criterion (3).

When considered for listing within the Historic Building Survey of the Gty of Santa Cruz, the
property meets the following criteria:

1. The building is a significant exanple of the built environment heritage of the City as a
representative of late 1940s buil dings constructed to serve the auto service industry; and

4. The building is associated with architect C. J. Ryland, whose work has influenced the

devel opment of the City; and

5. The buil di ng possesses special aesthetic nmerit and value due to its quality of architecture,
retai ning sufficient features that show its architectural significance; and

6. The buil di ng possesses distinctive stylistic characteristics of Art Mderne; and

7. The building retains sufficient integrity to accurately convey its significance.

Integrity
The property maintains nost of its historical integrity as per the National Register's seven

aspects of integrity. It maintains its original location on Front Street, in the downtown area

of Santa Cruz; it is still surrounded by nuch, but not all of its apparent historic setting,

i ncl udi ng surroundi ng commerci al buildings of simlar age, scale and design and parcels with

sim | ar setbacks, parking, and streetscape. It retains its post-Wrld War Il comercial scale
and feeling and continues, through its form nassing and detailing, to illustrate its

associations with minor patterns of conmercial design in the twentieth century. Al though
altered at one section, the majority of the front facade retains its integrity with the Art
Moder ne style, including: the vertical monunent sign wall, full-w dth awning, curved show oom
wi ng, full-height display wi ndows, and | ow stone planters. The west-side addition, and front

al terations no not detract fromthe original character-defining materials and workmanshi p, and
the basic integrity of the subject property appears to have been preserved.
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